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people that can sit down and communicate with these children on their
level and these don’t meet State requirements,

The situation that has been talked about here, and related to time
and time again, kind of sets me back and makes me look back to my
childhood because this is the same situation that I lived through from
the boarding school era right on up the ladder, from broken family,
foster care homes, and right on up the ladder. I was fortunate, I
never got adopted out, but I can’t say this about a lot of orphans;
as far as the tribal court, and they imply that the tribal courts were a
part of this setup. I don’t know if you people are familiar with tribal
courts, funded through BIA, they are tribal courts, right. But, who
signs the check, who pulls the strings, which tune do they dance to?

This is the question we should be asking ourselves. I'm not saying
this is so now, because in the past 2 or 3 years there has been a great
movement away from this, through BIA contracts right on down the
line, Maybe the tribes are forced into this thing. )

My opinion is they were forced into it and it’s not a good thing
because they are assuming some of the trust responsibilities of the
U.S. Government.

Senator ABourEzKk. Richard, there’s been another vote call.

You've given some very good testimony and I wish that we could
continue. What I'm going to have to do now is recess until tomorrow
morning. The last witness, I'll have to ask her to come back; Esther
Mays, if you will come in the morning at 9 o’clock I'll take your tes-
timony then because I have to vote and I have to preside and there’s
not enough time to take any more witnesses today.

I want to express my gratitude, Richard and Mary Ann and all
the other witnesses that have appeared today. ) )

We are going to try to get something done to correct the situation.
Thank you very much.

The hearings are recessed until 9 a.m. tomorrow. ]

[Whereupon the subcommittee recessed, to reconvene Tuesday,
April9,1974 ]

INDIAN CHILD WELFARE PROGRAM

TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 1974
U.S. SENATE,

SUBCOMMITTEE ON INDIAN AFFAIRS,
oF THE CoMMITTEE ON INTERIOR AND INSULAR AFFAIRS,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met at 9:10 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room
3110 Dirksen Office Building, Hon. James Abourezk presiding.

Present: Senators Abourezk and Bartlett.

Also present: Jerry T. Verkler, staff director, and Forrest Gerard,
professional staff member.

Senator ABourEzK. The Indian Affairs Subcommittee wiil resume
the hearings now.

The first witness this morning is from Detroit, Mich., Esther Mays.
Esther, do you want to come to the witness table?

I want to apologize to you for cutting you off last night. I want to
express the committee’s gratitude for your staying overnight.

STATEMENT OF ESTHER MAYS OF THE NATIVE AMERICAN CHILD
PROTECTION COUNCIL, DETROIT, MICH,

Mrs. Mavs. Since you're handing out compliments, I’d like to com-
pliment you on your timing. It’s almost as good as ours.

My name is Esther Mays and I am from Detroit, Mich. The organi-
zation that I'm representing is called the Native American 5hild
Protection Council. T am on the board of directors.

Pretty much of what I have to say is the usual thing that has been
sald from what I heard yesterday. However, I will go through the
act again, so bear with me.

The Native American Child Protection Council is a nonprofit
organization with present membership of approximately 50 families
throughout the Michigan area. This organization was founded as
& response to the needs of many Indian families, particularly as it
relates to Indian children.

The problems are numerous and varied, especially in the area of
child placement. Our organization is concerned with the practices
and policies of various social service agencies as it affects the lives
of the Native American community. Our organization is a response
to the concern of many Indians throughout the State of Michigan
regarding the treatment of Native American children. Through
numerous inquiries to us from Indians, and various investigations
of the policies and practices of social service organizations through
the Indian community, we find many problems exist, such as: Indian
children are being placed in non-Indian foster and adoptive homes
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without regard or respect to Indian children’s racial and cultural
heritage.

Two, non-Indian homes generally are unable to relate to the Indian
child because of a lack of adequate knowledge of the child’s back-
ground. We oftentimes find the child’s process of adjusting to his
or her new surrounding extremely difficult.

Three, confusion, conflict exist in the Indian child’s mind as he
attempts to relate to the custom, tradition, values and the ways
of a non-Indian world. We have found many instances where the
Indian child, once he reaches the age where he can assume responsi-
‘}b;ility for himself, returning to the Indian community in search of

is past.

F%ur, we find many adoptive and foster family parents totally
unfamiliar with the Indian way of life, its family structure, values,
traditions, and customs. We find that there is a definite need for these
foster families to be able to understand, in their mind, and be better
able to relate to the needs of the Indian child.

Our council is prepared, and has provided many services to many
non-Indian foster parents and social service organizations that called
us to provide this service. )

Our policy in the area of child placement has been Indian homes
for Indian children. We are also involved in the recruitment of these
homes. We feel that the Indian home is better equipped to handle
and service the need of Indian children. The Indian home nurtures
the traditions and the way of life for the Indian world. This type of
environment would allow the child to remain aware of his cultural
heritage and identity. The Indian home is more prepared and better
suited to understand and provide the emotional feeling of well bemng
that the child requires and needs. .

Tt is the nature of the Indian community to seek help from within
its own community where this form of help is available. Many Indian
families have found social service agencies unable to understand, or
relate, thus thereby unable to service their needs. Our organization
has performed family counseling services for families with problems.
Whatever the problems have been, in any area, we have provided
the needed help to keep many family units together, whenever and
where.

We have provided food, clothing, transportation, furniture, what-
ever our resources have been, to help to keep that family together.
We have also provided information, Jegal assistance to Indian parents
who have need for this service. We have also attended court, given
testimony in behalf of natural parents who are trying to find a way
of keeping their children with them. We have also received many
requests from parents who have lost their children through the courts
and who want to regain them. )

Members of our organization have traveled many miles throughout
the State of Michigan to be serviceable to the many Indian families
that called for our assistance. Presently, our organization is operated
strictly from volunteer help from the Indian community. We have
also asked help from various churches and private individuals for
contributions of clothes, food, and furniture to help with carrying
out our function. We are presently nonfunded.
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Bernice Appleton from 3164 Linden, Dearborn, Mich., is one of
the founders of this organization and I am her coworker, in a sense
of a way.

The organizations that are supporting our ideals are the North
American Indian Association of Detroit, the Commission of Indian
Affairs in Michigan, the Great Lake Northern Stars, the Genessee
Valley Indian Association.

My recommendations: The restriction of the non-Indian values
be lifted and to insert Indian values for my people and our children,
such as, restrictions of the Indian homes to be changed so that the
Indian homes are available for Indian children; the restriction of age,
because age has long been the teachers of our cultural values. '

Two, change the laws that require us to be a party to the enslave-
ment of our children and the erasers of our culture, thereby making
our people become a copartner of destroying our rights as Indian
parents. Keep in mind the standards that were set were made for
non-Indians.

Three, in-service training for social workers to promote a better
understanding of the uniqueness of my people and the involvement
of my people who you can call paraprofessionals, whose input will
be the bridge of understanding of our culture and the society of today.

Four, if possible an investigation of agencies who deal with the
Indian adoptions and make them accountable for the methods they
use for transporting Indian children across the State lines and the
Canadian borders.

Your terms are called kidnaping when you use them.

Five, to be put on the mailing list for any material involving this
matter.

Thank you.

Senator ABourezk. Esther, thank you very much. We appreciate
you coming up from Detroit to give your testimony. Would you give
that to the reporter?

Before I introduce the next witness, I just want to recognize in
the room one of my constituents from South Dakota, Jermain Means.

Jermain 1s from the Cheyenne Indian Reservation, S. Dak. I just

want to introduce you.

Thank you.

The next speaker is Dr. Carl Hammerschlag from Phoenix, Arz.
Is he here?

How about Mr. Mike Chosa, Ms. Victoria Gokee, and Ms. Betty
Jack from Milwaukee, Wis.?

STATEMENTS OF MIKE CHOSA, VICTORIA GOKEE, AND BETTY JACK,

AMERICAN INDIAN CHILD DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM, MILWATU-
KEE, WIS.

Mr. CHosaA. Senator Abourezk, I would like to introduce the chair-
man of the board of directors of the American Indian Child Develop-
ment Pregram in the State of Wisconsin, Ms. Betty Jack, a Chippewa
Indian from Wisconsin.

And, immediately to my right is Ms. Victoria Gekee from the
Red Cliff Reservation, who 1s the executive director of the organization.
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Senator ABourezk. Which reservation?

Mr. Cuosa. The Red Cliff Reservation in Wisconsin.

Senator ABourrzk. We'd like to welcome all of you here and thank
you for coming.

Mr. Cuosa. My name is Mike Chosa. I’'m the administrative
assistant for the organization.

The opening statements will be given by Ms. Gokee first, and
Ms. Jack and I will sum up with recommendations.

Senator ABourezk. I'd like to ask you, since we have a very long
witness list this morning, could you summarize your statements?
We will print the statement in full in the record. That would be helpful
to the committee if you could do that. We have a great many people
yet to hear from.

STATEMENT OF VICTORIA GOKEE, DIRECTOR, AMERICAN INDIAN
CHILD PLACEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRANM

Ms. Goree. My name is Victoria Gokee and I am the director of
the American Indian Child Placement and Development Program,
Inc. T would like to give you a little background on our history and

when I say “history,” I'm talking about the Indian history in this
country.

My great-great-grandfather was Chief Buffalo, who came from
northern Wisconsin, and his father was Wahgec and his father was
Whageseto. This takes my ancestry back quite a good ways.

I would like to tell you that the Indians, as far as the Indians are
concerned, we went through three phases in the history of our country.

The first phase was the pre-European days, and at this time, if you
can imagine our country full of hunting and fishing, it was actually
a paradise. This is the way my people lived here. That's the way my
grandparents lived. Then along came the Europeans and this was a
difficult time for the Indians. This was the second phase. This is when
we were completely demoralized. .

Then the third stage that the Indians have is that we are realizing
that the Constitution was made not only for you, but it was made for
us, too. We're demanding equal things. We're demanding equal
opportunities. We're demanding equal employment. We are demanding
equal justice.

This is something that the Indians have never known in this country.

1 was guilty of allowing a lot of these things to happen, even though
my grandfather had told me this. I stayed home. I was a housewife.
I took care of my children but until this personal thing happened to
me I was content to sit at home. .

What happened was, my 14-year-old daughter’s name was Linda.
She became sick. The psychiatrists and psychologists, the social
workers, everyone assured me that this girl was a juvenile delinquent.
I knew in my own heart that this girl couldn’t change the kind of a
girl that she was, that loved animals, cats, and loved her little brothers
and sisters, to just a plain juvenile delinquent. I knew something
was wrong with her.

I took her to these people and I trusted these people because I
thought that they knew much more than I did.

As the result, Linda was in jail. Linda died in the streets of Bayfield.
The chief of police assumed that this girl, because she was an Indian
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girl, they assumed she was drunk. They did absolutely nothing to
help her. They thought she was just another drunken Indian and she
died after I went there to get an ambulance to take her to the hospital.

I think from that time on, I decided that never again, if I could
dﬁignythjng about it, would I allow these kind of people to just do this
thing.

Since then, I’ve been chairman of our tribe in Red Cliff. I've been
M.C.I. area vice president. I’ve been fighting, in my own way, in my
own style, to prevent tragedies like this from happening again.

I was Indian affairs coordinator for the State of Wisconsin, and
while I was there I conducted hearings in the State of Wisconsin and
it’s difficult to believe the kind of things that I have heard there.

For instance, Ronnie Winters testified at the hearing in Courte
Oreilles last August that at the age of 11 years old, and he is from the
Courte Oreilles Reservation, he was judged delinquent because he was
a fullblooded Indian and he wanted to fish, hunt, and pick wild flowers
and do the kind of things that Indians love to do, and he didn’t attend
school. One of the reasons he didn’t attend school was because it was a
racist community and he was called things like ‘“dirty little Indian”
and that kind of thing and he wanted to live his own life. He wanted to
be an Indian.

He was judged delinquent and he was sent to a foster home in
Sawyer County.

He went through a series of three different foster homes, all non-
Indian foster homes and at the age of 12, in the homes, he was forced
to do the farm labor.

The other thing was that he went to a school and this was in Lady-
smith, and of course he was the only Indian boy there, so it was
probably worse than the conditions back at the reservation, and he
eventually, at 12 years old—a judge brought him back to the Sawyer
County courthouse and they sentenced him to Waukesha—Waukesha
is a boy’s reformatory—at the age of 12.

Ronnie stayed there from 12 to 15, and at 15 something happened
with the guard and because of this he was sentenced to the Green
Bay Reformatory.

Now, I don’t know if you know where Green Bay is, but as far as the
Indians are concerned, we didn’t even realize that there was a city of
Green Bay for awhile. We always thought it was the Green Bay
Prison; that’s where the Bay Prison was.

I’'m attending the university there. Now we're aware that there
are other things in Green Bay besides the prison.

Eventually, Ronnie got out. He stayed in Green Bay for 38 months
and eventually he got out and today he is working in Chicago. He’s
taking care of his younger brother because he said at no way, shape,
or form does he want his brother to go through the things that he did.

He eventually got an education. I think he holds a B.A. degree
today, but this is only one of the many, many tragedies that the
Indians have suffered.

As a result of this, everything that has happened to the Indians,
the Indians in the State of Wisconsin have organized a statewide
Indian foster care program.

We have representatives from practically every reservation there
with resolutions of support from 7 reservations out of 10. And the
only reason we don’t have the other three is because it’s difficult to
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travel throughout the State to get the supporting resolutions. We

have representatives on our board sitting from every reservation.
This kind of a program receives unanimous support from the tribes

because I don’t believe there’s a family in the State of Wisconsin that

hasn’t been affected someway, somehow by this kind of an organiza-
tion.

I noticed yesterday that we had five psychiatrists coming up and
testifying. Well, these people are probably good, but I did learn from
my experience that these people don’t know everything.

One of the purposes of our program is to work with the natural
parents, and if not the natural parents, with the extended family.
The State came in, the State of Wisconsin, they would take our chil-
dren and they would never again consult with the families as to where

ghey should go. They took them and they placed them all in non-Indian
omes.

I believe in the State of Wisconsin there is roughly 600 in 1,000
Indians all situated in non-Indian homes, and there’s a parallel between
the non-Indian kids and the or, excuse me, the Indian kids that are in
non-Indian homes in Waukesha, Green Bay, and, eventually, Waupun.

I could probably stand here and tell you all day of the terrible

tragedies and injustices but I would rather let Mike Chosa and Betty
Jack continue on.

Thank you very much.

Senator ABourEzK. Thank you very much, Victoria. We appreciate
your testimony.

[The prepared statement of Victoria Gokee follows:]

STATEMENT OF VIcTORIA GOKEE, DIRECTOR, AMERICAN INDIAN CHILD PLACEMENT
AND DeverorMeENT ProOGRAM, INC.

The American Indian Child Placement and Development Program, Inc. (here-
inafter Program) was incorporated in the State of Wisconsin as a nonstock non-
profit corporation on October 31, 1973. Its real beginnings evolved from a crisis
situation that occurred in early 1972. Two women from Wisconsin on a vacation
visit to South Dakota’s Pine Ridge Reservation obtained physical custody of a
three-year-old Oglala Sioux child. The mother of the child was led to believe that a
paper she signed merely granted her permission for the women to take the child on
a short trip to Wisconsin. It was later discovered that the paper was actually an
agreement to surrender all parental rights and to consent to the adoption of the
child. The women returned to Wisconsin and subsequently refused to return the
child. They offered to compensate the parents, stating further that ‘ God has
ordained” that the child have opportunities which the parents could not offer. A
national Indian organization became aware of the problem and obtained the
services of a Wisconsin attorney to represent the parents in getting the child back.
Such effort proved successful, as one of the women observed to a newspaper re-
porter: “We don’t want to keep her with Indians pounding at the door.” Indeed,
as news of the ““abduction’ spread throughout the Wisconsin Indian community,
awareness grew that the transfer of Indian children to non-Indian homes was a
fact of life right within the State of Wisconsin. (The foregoing account is largely
extracted from Indian Family Defense, a new publication by the Association on
American Indian Affairs, Inc., Winter 1974 issue, page 1.)

During 1972 the magnitude of the problem was identified, largely due to the
efforts of two VISTA Volunteers working out of the Wisconsin Judicare office.
Besides generating further interest in a solution by members of the Indian com-
munity, the attached statistics were gathered, at times in spite of great reluctance
to divulge displayed by state and county social service agencies. (copy attached)
Numecrous meetings at the various reservations took place. At first the emphasis
was on recruiting more Indians desirous of opening their homes to foster children.
Due to the state’s space requirements, many interested families had been pre-
viously denied a foster home license. No state or county agency ever promoted a
concerted effort to recruit additional Indian foster parents.

R ’ e L sttt
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By early 1973 it was fast becoming apparent that the only way to overcome the
difficulty that most Indians experience in dealing with the established social
services agencies was to have an all-Indian agency performing most services
directly and acting as a sounding board or buffer zone in other instances. On
March 16-17, 1973 at Keshena, Wisconsin a conference between representatives
of the Indian community and staff of the Wisconsin Department of Health and
Social Services concurred in that very conclusion. At the conference the original
board of directors for the Program was elected. In October of 1973 a start-up
grant was awarded by the Bush Foundation of St. Paul, Minnesota. As stated
heretofore, incorporation occurred the same month. Late that month I was
employed by the board as director for the Program, commencing November 1,
1973. At present Michael Chosa, Administrative Assistant and I are the only
staff personnel. Since I do not possess Wisconsin’s requirements for a social
services director, it will be necessary to hire a case-work supervisor who has at
least a masters degree in social work. Finding someone who meets this qualifica-
tion plus child welfare experience and who is also an Indian has not been an easy
task, even with the assistance of staff of Region V HEW Office. An Indian person
who meets only the academic qualification has expressed interest in the Program.
She will receive her masters degree 1n social work in June from the University of
Minnesota at Duluth. A faculty member of that institution, a person with over
ten years experience in child welfare, has offered to provide consultation to this
casework supervisor. I am optimistic that the State of Wisconsin will permit this
arrangement as constituting substantial compliance with the regulation. The
School of Social Work of the same institution has offered to construct and admin-
ister a staff training plan. A contract to that effect is presently in the works.

In addition, I will be able to receive assistance from the faculty to enable me
to complete a degree program that I am presently pursuing through the University
Without Walls of the University of Wisconsin at Green Bay.

Recruitment of family counselors through the Work Incentive Program—
Public Service Employment has commenced throughout the state and interviews
with prospective employees will begin soon. Funding for non-WIN staff as well
as other administrative expenses 1s being sought via contract with the Bureau of
Indian Affairs. The period covered by the Bush Foundation grant expired on
December 31, 1973, even though some of those monies remain and are being
utilized to cover present costs.

The deadline for hiring full staff and beginning staff traiming 1s July 1, 1974.
In the meanwhile, the board is quite busy formulating policy covering numerous
areas, preparing not only for agency functioning but meeting the minimum
requirement for licensure as a private child placing agency.

he Program’s goal is an ambitious one. Everyone in the Program is aware
that mistakes will be numerous. Nevertheless, I and every participant to date is
convinced that because of this Program every Indian child and family in the State
of Wisconsin will have a better chance to lead a productive and meaningful life.

Senator ABourezK. Ms. Betty Jack.

STATEMENT OF BETTY JACK, CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
AMERICAN INDIAN CHILD DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM, STATE OF
WISCONSIN

Ms. Jack. My name is Betty Jack. I'm from Lac du Flambeau, Wis.

I left my reservation in 1956 and went to the city with three of my
children and I lived there for awhile and I worked but it was very diffi-
cult to adjust to city life. )

I stayed there from 1956 until 1957, when I finally sent my kids
home to visit my husband and his father. )

In the meantime, they couldn’t take care of them on the reservation
so they sent them back to the city to me. _

In 1962, I had two of my children taken from me in Chicago and
they were placed by the Evangelical Child and Welfare Society They
were taken from the State of Wisconsin and I have never seen them
again.
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The courts said I was unfit to take care of my children, but I had
never gone to court and I never knew that they were legally adopted
until a year ago.

Senator ABOUREZK. You say you have never seen them since 1962?

Ms. Jack. No.

Senator Asourezk. Did
procedure of any kind?

Ms. Jack. No.

Senator ABourEzk. Did you ever have a lawyer that advised you
on that?

Ms. Jack. No, I never did. They never appointed me a lawyer at
court or anything.

My other three children went back on the reservation with their
father and then they took them away. Welfare took them away when
I'sent them home in 1963 and there they were transferred many times.

Senator ABourEzK. Then what happened?

Ms. Jack. They were transferred many times to different foster
homes. When I tried to go and see them, my one daughter had eight
placements in 6 years because every time I'd go to visit her, they
would transfer her to somewhere else so I couldn’t find her.

hen my son, he’s 20 now, but he had six placements in 4 years and
my other daughter, she had six placements in 4 years. They kept
transferring them around the State of Wisconsin so I couldn’t see
them. Now, I don’t know where my other two children are.

I went to the State Department of Wisconsin, the State adoption
agency last spring, and I inquired there and this woman told me that
the kids were adopted out about a year or 12 months after they were
placed, or taken from Chicago. She told me that they were legally
adopted and there was nothing that I could do.

I asked if I could have my children, the one that I had, to be placed
on a tribal role. She said no, if they weren’t done before they were
adopted that there’s no way.

She said that these children belong to these people that they are
adopted by. So, she said that I couldn’t put them on a tribal role, but
these kids are Indians and they should, at least, be on a role.

Last June, I went to court and I got custody of my young daughter.
She was 16 at the time. She came to me and she told me, after she was
with me for a month, she said, I don’t want to stay. She said that
Indians are nothing but lazy, dirty, drunks, and she had her hair
bleached blonde and she said she wanted to go back. But, I wouldn’t
let her go back.

Finally, in February of this year, I had to give up and let her go
back to the white home she was in because she was killing herself on
the street with drugs and drinking.

My other daughter, Valerie, she’s 18 now, she’s just drinking. I
would say she is an alcoholic at 18. My son is heavy into drugs. He’s
20 years old now and he had to drop out of the University of, Wisconsin
and he couldn’t make it. He couldn’t fit in. And, he said the Indian
group there, the Native American Indian group said he couldn’t belong
to the Indians and that he didn’t belong to the whites anymore either.
So, he just didn’t want to go to school. Now, he’s down in New Mexico
some place. I don’t know what he’s doing.

But, the way these kids come back to me, I don’t think—I thought
about getting my other two children back but T don’t think I could 2o

you ever have a court hearing or a court
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through anymore, seeing how the minds of my kids have been damaged
so terribly. ) )

Since I’ve been working with the State Indian foster care program,
I've heard so many stories over and over again that it’s just terrible
what’s happening to our people, not only in the State of Wisconsin
but all over I hear these stories. 7

One girl was taken from her reservation, and welfare told her that .
she’d be able to keep her other four children if she went through an
operation, so that she couldn’t have any more babies.

So, the welfare department in Eagle River, Wis,, the director there,
Mr. Luvell, he drove this woman over to the State of Michigan and
there she had the operation, in Michiian. And, they brought her back
home and then when she got home, they took her four children away
and she has never seen them again, either. )

Another girl from my reservation, she had two children, three
children at home and she got pregnant again and the welfare sent her to
Keshena Women’s Prison and there she was operated on and forced to
adopt this baby out. ; :

So, these stories are all documented by the lawyers working with
our program. : )

I just can’t stand to see this go on anymore after seeing what
happened to my family. Something has to be done. i

Senator ABourezk. Well, Betty, we're going to take steps just as
soon as we can. I agree, I don’t think it should go on any longer.

I appreciate your testimony, Betty. o

Ms. Jack. I've gone through a rehabilitation program for my
drinking and there again, I was faced—I don’t know, 1t was terrxbl’e
going through rehabilitation in the hospital, although I haven’t
drunk since. . ]

There was no understanding of the Indian people. There were eight
other people beside myself that were in this hospital and there we had
nobody in this rehabilitation hospital to talk to about our problems
and we just had ourselves. . ) -

So, the eight of them that were in there with me, they are all drink-
ing again in the street. The counselors there just had no understanding
of the Indian people and I stayed there for 90 days at the rehabilitation
hospital.

]%)uring that 90 days, almost all of them left and drank; I stayed
because I wanted to do something for myself. When I went to the
counseling service, it was with my daughter before I let her go back to
the white foster home, I went to about seven or eight different white
counselors there. They just couldn’t understand what we were going
through, so we just quit. ) )

Ml‘.gCHOSA. ]I thgnk I will just pick up and give you a little back-
ground of the organization and recommendations, the legislative
recommendations.

The recommendations that I'm going to make today, I would say
are radical changes to the present system or laws that you have
enacted. ) ) board of

We, in the State of Wisconsin, have 18 women on the board o
directors and 2 men, and all 18 of these women and the 2 men have
suffered some of the same injustices, so it’s a pretty strong board. They
know what is happening and they know what they have to do. They
will go to any means in order to get it done.
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I think if we don’t have some radical legislation, we’re going to have
some radical movements in order to solve the problems. Now 1s the
time that Congress can move in changing this picture.

Some of the research that our organization has done in the last 2
years has indicated that over $16 million is spent yearly in the State of
Wisconsin to keep our Indian children in non-Indian care.

In the State of Wisconsin, we have 780 of our Indian children that
are incarcerated in correctional institutions at this time. We have 680
that are in fostercare, and we have 473 that are in adoptive placement.

Now, these statistics are only statistics that come from the Depart-
ment of Social Services in the State of Wisconsin. They do not include
the voluntary adoptions or placements to the various church
organizations.

Projecting this figure, we come close to 40 percent of our Indian
children that are away from our families, and this does not include
our children that are in boarding schools.

Our agency works very closely with the State of Wisconsin De-
partment of Social Services, and hopefully, they will grant us a
license as a placement agency. However, they told us this, that once
we become a private agency and we've accepted custody of a child
neither the State nor the Federal Government or the local governments’
have no financial responsibility.

I think this is a wrong kind of a way to approach the problem
because the Federal Government has apparent responsibility with
our tribes through our treaties.

I think that if a State doesn’t have—or does have a responsibility
and uses those means of doing away with thisresponsibility, it is utilizing
Federal legislation for violating our treaties.

In the instance of due process, the court-appointed attorneys almost
always are in a subservient position to the court. The only guarantee
that a child has of Federal representation is if a private lawyer and
private legal agency is brought in to defend that child. i

In the case of guardians ad litum, is they are continually making
decisions, supposedly on the behalf of the child without consulting
with the tribal people, to ascertain whether or not those tribal rights
are being violated, the apparent rights that we have with Indian people.

One of the recommendations is that some legislation be introduced to
correct this situation so that guardians ad litum must concur with
the tribal councils or tribal leaders for making Indian decisions for
children.

I noticed yesterday that sensitivity courses were mentioned for
non-Indian social workers to be supervised by the Bureau of Indian
Affairs. I think, probably, first they ought to have sensitivity study
courses for the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

The courses, or any kind of courses and any kinds of moneys that are
appropriated for this kind of sensitivity training, should be ad-
ministered by the tribe.

One of the other things that we have found is the severe readjust-
ment problems that are evident in Indian children who have been
in long-term foster care, or non-Indian homes, especially when they are
subsequently exposed to a non-Indian environment. If we are to
adequately ameliorate these existing cases, I believe it would be
necessary to establish something like a halfway home center.

N e TS e

169

If Congress would look to appropriating moneys through the Bureau
to establish such centers that would be run by the tribes or some
kind of contracted Indian agency. We're talking about 600 children
in this State and 700 in that State, and we're trying to get these kids
back to their Indian people; it becomes very difficult.

I think you heard testimony from one of the psychiatrists yesterday,
that the rehabilitation rate was a 65- or 75-percent failure n most
cases. So there needs to be some kind of effort made by Congress in
order to appropriate money so that our tribes and our people can
work toward rehabilitating our own people.

Many of the basic problems can be reverted if many of our own
initiative programs can be initiated. This program involves counseling
and parental involvement, recreational programs, and youth employ-
ment with emphasis on family advocacy. )

The pilot program in Milwaukee County was started, officially in
January, but unofficially last October. It’s a family program that
involves the hard core, you might say, of children that come up
through two or three generations of oppression, both on the reserva-
tion and in the urban areas; and we virtually stopped all placements
in the Milwaukee County area at this point, because of this program
and because of the advocacy with the parents and with the courts.

The specific legislation that 1 would request or recommend 1S:
One, the Congress introduce and pass legislation that would amend
the AFDC law to permit the separate tribes to receive rexmbursement
for foster care services as units of government.

Senator ABourEzK. What law is that? A

Mr. Crosa. The AFDCFC, the AFDC law under social security
in exchange for foster care, there are reimbursable payments to
States and counties. 7

At the present time in the 280 States, the tribes are ineligible to
receive these reimbursements. )

No. 2, that the Congress introduce and pass legislation which
would prevent the States and counties or private agencles from
receiving reimbursements from Federal funds unless children are
placed in Indian homes. - :

No. 3, that the Congress introduce and pass legislation which
would prevent reimbursement to States, counties, and private agencies
for foster care services unless plans are developed and implemented
by them to begm rehabilitative work with children and natural
parents, with the objective of eventual return to their natural homes.

No. 4, that the Congress introduce and pass legislation which
would prevent the 280 States and counties from incarcerating juveniles
without concurrence of tribal governments. 7 )

No. 5, that the Congress introduce and pass legislation preventing
the placement of any Indian child in 2 non-Indian home or &
non-Indian controlled institution, without concurrence from tribal
governments.

And the last one is very important, and I think they should do very
quickly. That the Congress introduce and pass legislation preventing

fhe Bureau of Indian Affairs from making any payments to any
group for the foster care or adoption of Indian children unless such
care or adoption is in an Indian home.

Having here before me the negotiated contract for one State, of
which you will hear testimony later on this morning, whereby the
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Bureau of Indian Affairs is appropriating over $1 million a year to a
State for its placement of Indian children in white homes.

Senator ABoUrEzK. What State is that?

Mr. Crosa. The State of Minnessota.

The Bureau of Indian Affairs is supposed to be the appointed agency
which is looking to the interest of our people, and when it can be
allowed by law to use Federal money to take and destroy our people,
T'don’t think that’s answering the question at all.

And with that, we are opened for questions.

Senator Asourrzk. Would you have any confidence in any pro-
grams that left the States in conrol of funding for the child welfare
programs?

Mr. Crosa. If they pertain to Indians, no.

Senator ABourEzk. How would you suggest the Indian communi-
ties and Public Law 280 States receive control of such funding?

Mr. Crosa. I beliave there are two directions now that could be
looked into.

One is the establishment of a subagency, if necessary, under the
present social services, or the main welfare department of the State,
th%re would be an Indian division who will work directly with the
tribes.

The other would take a lot longer and that would be going into
court and suing the State or local government because in each of our
constitutions and bylaws for Indian people, and I'm sure they are a
part of our treaties, it states that Indian people have jurisdiction over
minors, Indian tribes do.

I think that Public Law 280 is unconstitutional when it comes to
tampering with the jurisdiction of our children without our consent.

[The prepared statement of Michael Chosa follows:]
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STATEMENT BY MICHAEL CHOSA, ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

TG THE AMERICAN INDIAN CHILD PLACEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM, INCORPORATED, 610 NORTH JACKSON STREET,
MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN, 53202, (414) 765-0313

to :

THE UNITED STATES éENATE APRIL 9, 1974

The history of the American Indian family for tens of thousands of years
has been one of togetherness and unity. This tradition has all but been _
destroyed by the coming of the White race, with their laws, their
customs, and their religions. The statistics today bear out the results
of this imposition on our people. The International Court has defined
GENOCIDE in a variety of ways, one being "the systematic removal of
children of one race of people to the care of another race of people...."”

This is whatexists in today's America.

The State of Wisconsin, a ""280" state, now has 730 Indian children
incarcerated in correctional institutions. The average cost for
institutional care is $19,000 per year per child The amount of direct
service monies spant in the State of Wisconsin for keeping Indian
children in non-Indian situations is $16,000,000. This figure does not
represent any indirect costs such as administrative or legal services.
The Association on Indian Atfairs has come up with an average nation-

wide figure of 25% of Indian children who are removed to non-Indian
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situations. When we put together the 680 Indian children in state or
county custody for foster care, the 473 Indian children in adoption,

and the 780 Indian children incarcerated, plus those children placed by
Catholic Social Services and Luthern Social Services (figures unavailable)
we are bordering on neariy 40% of our Indian children in the State of
Wisconsin in non-Indian homes or institutions.

In the instance of due process, the court-appointed attorney is almost
always in a subservient position to the court. The only guarantee a
child has of fair representation is if a private lawyer or legal service
is brought in. In cases of Guardians-ad-litum, no decision should be
made by them unless they are in concurrence with tribal governments.
No statements should be elicited ‘from youth when they are detained,

unless their attorneys are present. This should include the advising

of rights,

The American Indian Child Placement and Development Program, Inc.
(hereinafter Program) was incorporated in the State of Wisconsin as a
nonstock nonprofit corporation on October 31, 1973. Its real beginnings
evolved from a crisis situation that occurred in early 1972, Two women
from Wisconsin on a vacation visit to South Dakota’s Pine Ridge
Reservation obtained physical custody of a three-year-old Oglala Sioux

child. The mother of the child was led to believe that a papar she signed
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merely granted her permission for the women to take the child on a
short trip to Wisconsin. It was later discovered that the paper was
actually an agreement to surrender all parental rights and to consent
to the adoption of the child. The women returned to Wisconsin and
subsequently refused to return the child. They offered to compensate
the parents, stating further that "God has ordained” that the child
have opportunities which the parents could not offer. A national Indian
organization became aware of the problem and obtained the services of
a Wisconsin attorney t;) r‘e=prese'nt the parents in getting the child back.
Such effort proved successful, as one of the women observed to a
newspaper reporter: "We don't want to keep her with Indians pounding

]

at the door. " Indeed, as news of the "abduction" spread throughout the
Wisconsin Indian community, awareness grew that the transfer of
Indian children to non-Indian homes was a fact of life right within the

State of Wisconsin. (The foregoing account is largely extracted from

Indian Family Defense, a new publication by the Association on American

Indian Affairs, Inc., Winter 1974 issue, page 1.}

During 1972 the magnitude of the problem was identified, largely
due to the efforts of two VISTA Volunteers working out of the Wisconsin
Judicare office. Besides generating further interest in a solution by

members of the Indian community, the attached statistics were gathered,
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at uimes in spite of great reluctance to divulge displayed by state and county

social service agencies, (copy attacnhed) Numerous meetings at the

various reservations took place. At first the emphasis was on recruiting

more Indians desirous of opening their homes to foster children. Due

to the state's space requirements, many interested families had been

previously denied a foster home license. No state or county = zency

ever promoted a concerted effort to recruit additional Indian foster parents.

By early 1973 it was fa_st becoming apparent that the only way to overcome
the difficulty that most Indians experience in dealing with the established
social services agencies was to have an all-Indian agency performing
most services directly and acting as a sounding board or buffer zone in
other instances. On March 16-17, 1973, at Keshena, Wisconsin, a'
conference between representatives of the Indian community and staff of
the Wisconsin Department of Health and Social Services concurred in that

very conclusion. At the conference the onginal board of directors for

the Program was elected, In October of 1973 a start-up grant was awarded

by the Bush Foundation of St. Paul, Minnesota., As stated heretofore,,

incorporation occurred the same month.

At present we are scheduled to go into full operaton as of July 1, 1974,

with a staff of 10 case aides, casework supervisor, one casework
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supervisor trainee, two secretaries, and two administrators. By
October, we should have an additional staff of 12 professional counselors,

and a caseload of 300 Indian children.
Recommendations:

If sensitivity courses are developed for non-Indian caseworkers,
probation officers, etc., the courses should not be supervised by the

BIA, but by tribal governments.

We have found that severe re-adjustment problems are evident in Indian
children who have been in long-term foster or adoptive placement,
especially when they are subsequently exposed to a total Indian envi fonment.
If we are to adequately ameliorate the existing cases, i believe it will

be necessary to establish something such as half-way-home centers.

The Congress should look to appropriating monies through the BIA to
establish such centers. Thesc centers could be operated by tribes or

subcontracted to private Indian-controlled agencies.

Many of the placement problems can be averted if good preventive
programs are initiated. This type of programming 1nvolves extensive
counseling, parental involvement, recreational programs, and youth
employment, with emphasis on family advocacy. In Milwaukee

county, all placements have virtually come to a halt since the family
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program was initiated in January. More funds need to be appropriated

for these kinds of activities,

Legislative Recommendations:

1,

That the Congress introduce and pass legislation that would amend
the AFDCFC law to permit the several tribes to receive

reimbursement for foster care services as units of government.

That the Congress introduce and pass legislation which would
prevent states, counties, or private agencies from receiving
reimbursements from Federal funds unless children are placed

in Indian homes.

That the Congress introduce and pass legislation which would
prevent reimbursements to states, counties, and private agencies
for foster care services unless plans are developed and
implemented by them to begin rehabilitative work with children
and natural parents, with the objective of eventual return to

their natural homes.

. That the Congress mntroduce and pass legislation which would

prevent the 280 States and counties from incarcerating juveniles

without concurrence of tribal governments.
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. That the Congress introduce and pass legislation preventing the

placement of any Indian child in a non-Indian home or a non-Indian
controlled institution without concurrence from tribal governments.

. That the Congress introduce and pass legislation preventing the

Bureau of Indian Affairs from making any payments to any group
for the foster care or adoption of Indian children unless such care

or adoption is in an Indian home.
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Table I
Indian Children Under Care of County Denartments
in Rhinelander Resion ¥

17 6
0 6
0 12
o] 0
10 0
0 1
Ly 17
0 1
16 9
3 3
8 6 21 Counties
0 2
1 1
3 1
10 1
0 0
0 1
3 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
112 - Counties 67 ~ DFS Direct Services
Indian Foster Care Cases Indian Foster Care Cases
Total Indian Foster 112
Care Cases within _67
the Repion 179
Table II
Indian Children Under Care of County Departments
in Milwvaukee Repion *
0 0
1 0
2 0
0 1
L9 18 8 Counties
0 0
0 1
10 2
62 _ County Indian Foster 722 - DFS Direct Services Indian Foster

Care Cases Care Cases
Total Indisn Foster Care 62
Cases within the Region 22
B
In two regions, a total of 263 Indien children in foster care.*

¥Figures as of December 31, 1972
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4s of March 1973:
Top Figure - number of children in foster care placement in the county.

Bottom Figure - number of Indian children in foster care placement -in
the county.

Note: These include only those

children placed by the County

Department of Social Services.
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, of Maxch 1973:
Top Faigure - number of licensed foster homes.1in the county.

Bottom Figure - number of licensed foster homes in the county. having at
least one parent of Indian heritage. )
Note: These figures include only
families licensed by the County °
Department of Social Services.
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.3 of March 1973:
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Top Figure = number of Indian foster children placed in foster homes
having at least one parent of Indian heritage.
Bottom Figure - number of Indian foster children placed in the homes of

“non~responsible relatives'.

* {"non-responsible relatives" are relatives

who, according to the Wisconsin Statutes are not legally financially

responsible for the

ll DOVELAS
i

[ AN

i 8™

ST, cro
]ICYE)Ippnli @ _0_

ok J cnild.)

J__.\“L“S?N ~.

Note: The question regarding the
bottom figure, as stated on the
guestionnaire, was not sufficiently
clear. This resulted in some am-
biguous answers. Some of the res-
ponding counties left this question
blank.
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.2 of March 1973: as of March 1973:

Top Figure - number of foster children placed due to delinquency charges. Top Figure - number of foster children placed due to either dependancy,
neglect or voluntary placement.

Bottom Figure - number of Indian foster children placed due to delinguency Bottom Figure - number of Indian foster children placed due to either

charges. dependancy, neglect or voluntary placement.
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Top Figure - number of Indian Social Workers employed by the county g &
office. : a
Bottom Figure - number of Indian Case Aids emploved by the county office. 2 | 2 2 P s H B @ od "t >
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Tanlit JCUR - MILWAUKEE COUNTY CHILDREN'S COURT CENTER 1972 REFERRALS BY ALLEGED OFIENSE, SEX ALD RACE

CAUCASTAN HEGRO INDIAN CTHER GRAND
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Senator Asourezx. I want to thank all three of you for your
excellent testimony. I appreciate very much the fact that vou came
here to testify Thank you. ’

[Subsequent to the hearing the following information was
submitted ;]

B T A Proposal

Becauss Family Health provides services to Indian people living on
reservations in Minnesota, and because of the need to lncrease those
‘services to effectively serve the Indian people, Family Health is

-~ 3 " a ing ffai taff itions;
[Jrnled Stales [)epartnicnt O{ ﬂ)e Inierlor requesting the Bureau of Indian Affairs to fund two sta posit 3
BUREAU OF INDIAN AFFAIR

MINNEADPCLIS AREA OFFICE
831 SECOND AVENUE SOUTH
MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA 535402

plus travel costs:

i. Two full-time Case Manager positilons to provide services
IN BEPLY REFER TO:

Social Services

" & to Indians living on the reservations, and to those migrating
475025 knb 2o 974

between the reservation and the Twin Cilties.
Mrs, Norby Blake, Coordinator
Femily Hezlth Progranm
Lutheran Deaconess Hospital
130% EFast 24th Street
Minneapolis, Minnessta 35404

2. One full-time staff person to recruit and work with Indian

foster homes for Indian children, including on the reservations.

T bl Paccoan vraman S B Tamd Tee WanTbwmin nwdmnbnnan Fla mmrmsmwmam lhac wamirad
= TR ZSuD pooarc ol FamLly nftZonhiooTmooTonTe, T % e BaE

Re: Fropnosal ;4750-25 RE oo Al Wl

Dear Mrs. Blake: % consistently with Indian people living on the reservations. 'As Family

. . ) ) ) Health nas expanded 1ts scope, we feel it is necessary now to expand
aank you for the proposal vhich you submitted on March 8, 1374

requesting funding to provids foster home anu child plecement
services ia Minnesota, We have assigred number 4F50-25 to vour
proposal for recording purposes, i

further, and to be funded for services that we have been providing to

Indian people living on reservations, and to those who are migrating

We have read the proposal and the Family Health Program Sumzary between the Twin Citles and the reservations.
and appraciate the work which you are doing and proposs to sccom-

. plish if adequate funding can be secured, Deczuse vour vresosal
is very similar to one submitted by the HinnesoTz Unipiews ieib
it is not appropriate for us ta give further consiceration
contractirg for your services, If it is found that we can 1
contract for these services, with an agency other then the ance
Welfare Department, our preferencs would be to work with the reses
tion baced agency of the Ninnesota Chippewa Tribe,

“There are three categorles of Indian people from the reservations with

--whom Family Health works:

1) Many Indizn people have required services which are not avallaple

on the reservations, and Family Health has been requested by the families

We appreciate youy interest in improving the Indien Foster Cov
= A 2 7 impy & Eald ster Cove ] t

Program and wish success to .the Pemily Health Planm, or various agencies to provide these services for the people.

‘Sincerely yours,

¢ )r££;7 5%£:Z{éz 3
s besenls P ey’ ™

b ot
Lzt ¢
{
A

Area Direcggr/;éx\/
# s
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2) Because of the mobility of Indian people between their
reservations and town, many of the same people we serve in the
Minneapolis area also become involved in welfare and court and
corrections situations in northern Minnesota counties adjacent to
the reservations. Frequently we need to send case managers,
psychological consultants, and our attorney to represent our

people 1in the counties.

3) Family Health works frequently with Indian people who leave
the reservations and come to Minneapolis to live. Indian people
encounter many difficulties when they settle in the city, in the

areas of health, law and justice, housing, income and employment.

We provided services for approximately 100 children and adults in 1973
who lived on the reservation or were migrating petween the reservation
and the city. -Services-which we provided are described. in detail on
the enclosed Description of the Family Health Program. They include
counseling, legal services, medlical and dental care, psychological
testing and evaluatioﬁsJ foster care placements, and *ransportaticns to
and from the reservation when necessary. In addition, we found housing,
furniture, food, clothing, and other emergency services for people

arriving in town from the reservation.

Because of the demand on Family Health to provide the services which
the Indian people need, Family Health requires additional staff. We
are unable to provide all of the services we are being requested to
provide, for Indian people on the reservation. Because Family Health

is providing this service to the Indian people, The Burezu of Indian

Ve S s - T ' s
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Affalrs is pledged to provide services to reservation Indians, and
therefore we are requesting the BIA to provide funding to Family
Health for additional staff, plus travel costs and the use of a GSA
vehicle. We need two additional full-time case managers whose primary

responsibility is to work with Indian people living on the reservation.

Family Health has also been involved in recruiting and working with
Indian foster homes for Indlan children. In Minnesota, the rate of
foster home placement of Indian children is four and one-half times
greater than that of non-Indlan ¢hildren. Indian children have
traditlionally been placed in White foster homes, and great confusion
and disorientation to the child has freguently been the result. The
Family Health Program believes that Indian children must be placed in
Indlan homes. We are the only program in Minnesota attempting ©o
—obtain-Indian foster homes;-and we have received a very positive
response from the Indian community. We have currently recruilted 50
Indian foster homes in the Twin Cities. BRBesides recruiting homes
and &ssisting in licensing thim, we provide additional services
needed by the child and the foster parents, supervise the care of
the child, and of the foster nome, work with the parents or other
“yesponsible relatives to enable the child to return home as soon as
possible, and provide review of the placement to determine if any

continuing services are necessary.

These functions should be expanded to a statewlde basis because of

the need for additional Indian foster nomes for the large number of
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Indian children who require foster care, It 1s necessary to
establish additional homes on the reservations so that Indian foster
children can remain within their own community. We currently have
only one person working approximately one-half time wilth foster

care, and there 1is not sufficient staff time to expand operations

to a statewlde basis, as is so sorely needed. Ve feel that the problems

relating to foster care can most effectively be solved by an Indian
agency providing placement. We feel that Familly Health is the rignt
agency to provide this functlon. We nave the trust and respect orf
the Indian community and have worked effectively in the foster home
field field in Minneapolis. We are reguesting the Bureau of Indian
Affairs to fund one full-time staff position to recrult and work
with Indian foster homes on a statewide basis, with emphasis on

obtaining foster homes on the reservation.

Family Health has a high degree of creditabllity with the Indian
people on ﬁhe reservations in Minnesota, and. has demonstrated its
ability to work in the Indian community, both on and off the
reservations. We have been requested by Minnesota reservations

to assist in development and planning of Indian-run services on the
reservaéipns on a number of occasicns, so that Indian people on the
reservations can provide services to their own people. Socilal and
psychological services, and foster and group homes are among the
services which must be provided on the reservations. This past
month, Indian people living on the Cass Lake Reservation requested

our assistance in developing an Indian-run service agency on the

S—_— s S T T T —
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reservation, modeled after the Family Health Program. Several of
our staff went to the Cass Lake Reservation to assist and consult

with them. HNett Lake has made a similar request to us, and ve

snall provide the same service to them.

Because the BIA is pledged to provide services to Indian people
living on the reservations, and because Family Health provides
services to so many people on the reservations, we are requesting
the Bureau of Indian Affairs to fund three positions: two Case
Manager positions to provide services to Indian people living on
the reservaticns and to those migrating between town and the
reservations, and one Foster Care Worker position to work tor the

development of Indian foster homes for Indian children on a state-

eI sl We ows 2lcc »oouscting £rawvel Pundg an

GSA vehicle for traveling to the reservations.
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BUDGET

Staff

2 Senior Case Managers, 100%
Annual $9,000

1 Senior Foster Care Manager, 100%
Annual $9,000

sringe venefics ior 3 full~-Tile egulvaicuud,
each $1,010 annual

Travel for 3 positions
$80 per month/worker

TOTAL

Plus one GSA vehicle for use in traveling to the rese

e L

$18,000

9,000

3,030

2,880

$32,910

T

rvetions.
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NEGOTIATED

NAME AND ADEUESS OF CONARASTOR
State of Hinnesota
Department of Public Welfare
Centennial Office Ruilding
St. Paul, My 55101

EINDER N
Buriness cu;

{(For definition of Small Lusmess scr reverse 1ide.)

cau of Indian Afisirs
nd _Avecue Sopth  Minseansili=sg

- CFPICE OF ACESEY ‘Depsi tment of the Im.:crior, it

2finaeapolis Area Office, 833

e L5
CONTRACT FOR P

Toster Care of Thdien Children in_the State of Minnesota for Fisca)l Yoar 1972
TLAGE
State of tinncsota
AMOUNT OF CONTRACT -$250,600.00 based on page &, paragraph 4, of the Buvezu
3 ¥ Sevvices Prozram
A

)
oy
v
3
[
o
&
i

This congfract is authorized under 25 U.S.C. 13 and negotiated persuant to 23 U.:.C
47 and 41 B.S,€. 252(¢) (93 20 BIAM 3.5 C(2) (c)

Lppropriation: 3F50-01-1770-1011 {Subject to funds being appropriated by

Titts CONTRACT, entercd into this data by The Uniteg States of America, heremafter eal
ment, represented by the Contracting Officer exccuting thiz contract, and the 1n taal, o
venture, corporation or State entity naned above, nereinafter called the Contractor, witnesscth
hereto do mutuafly agree as followg:

In iderztion of the ¢ stated herein, the Contractor shall perform the above-des
strict accordance with the attached documents ali of which are made 2 part hercof and designat

General Provisions, Form 5-1254 -9 'ﬁges
Speeial Provistons . = 5. Pages
~ Abtachments A,B,C - 3 Pages

IN WrTnESS whereof the partics hereto have exceuted this confract as of the date entered on the nire: g
heveol, . - T P

e
THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA - CONTRAETOR
‘By. _._State of Minncsota
(Uont wat s Oficen) 9 l ENate f Contractin)
_Area Directir By...lfae YL ssmnerie ot -

7 (s
Cemmissioncr of

Winncapolis ar:3°CF

~Uinveanolis,,
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GENERAL TROVISTONS

EGOTIATID CONTFACT

The Contractor varrants t4of rno
to solicitl o
nt or understsnding {or a cc
¢ brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bono fide em:
Ot bonz fide cstablished commercral or selling agencies mzintcined
Centractor for the »urpose of sccuring business. For brezch or vicls
of ;hls Varrenty the Sovernment shall have the righe to ennul this cc
withouvt iicbility or in its discretion to deduct frcm the contract = 2
consiceratien, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such COmﬁlS;iL i
percentege, brokerage, or contingent fee.

— 2y T

xS - ose

P on or seliing ageney
secCuye this

contract upon an agrecem
perecentape,

L

2. OFTICIALS 10T TO RENETIT: No member of Congress or resident Commi

i to any shere or port of this contract, or to any ban
that mey arise therefrom; but this zrovisien shell not be censtrucd
tend to this contract if made with a cerperation for its general benefit

shell be odurttea

3. _EX/MINATION OF RECORDS: (2) The Contractor agrces that the Comrtreller
Gencral of the United States cor any c¢f his duly cuthcrized renresentscives
shell, uetil the expiration of 3 years eiter final peyment under this con-
tract cr such lesser time specified in either Aprendix M of the Armed
Services Procurement Zegulation or the Federal Procurement Reguletions Ia
1-20, eos apyprerriate, heve eccess to and the right to examine any directl;
pertinent hocks, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor invelv:
transacticns related to this contrzct,

N
ng

(b) The Contractor further agrees to include in &ll his subcentracts hove-
under & provisicn to the effect that the subcontractor agrees that the
Comptroller General of the United States or any of his duly zutheorized
representztives shall, until the exniration of 3 years aofter finel pavuent
undc; the stbeontract or such lesser time svecified in either A end‘; M
of the ALrmcd Services Procurements Regulét'ons'or the Federal Procurceent
Regu)ations Part 1-20, as appropriate, have access tc and the right to ex—
2mine any directly vertinent books, documents, papers, and records cf such
ﬁchontractcr, involving trznsacticnms related to the subcentract. The terms
Suh?cntract" as used in this clause excludes {1) purchese orders not ex-
ceeding $2,500. ond (2) subcontracts cr purchzse orders for public utility

igrvices 2t rates established for uniform applicabilivy to the general puo-
ic. :

(c) ?hc rericds of access and examinaticn described in (b) and (¢) sbave,
-for the records which relate to (1) enzeals under the '"Disputes™ clause

of this eccntrace, (2) litigotion or the settlement of claims arising cut

of the perfcrmance of this contract, or (3) costs and cxpenses of this cen-
tract 28 te which excepticen has been taken by the Comotroller General or

any of his duly authecrized renresentatives, shall continue until such erinals,
litigaticn, clzims, or exceptions have been dispesed of,

A R — e
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4. ECUAL OPPORTUIITY: (The folleving clause
centract exempt viader the rules, regulction
the Secretery of Labor (41 CFR, ch. €0).

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrecs &s

Y The Centracter will net discriminate against cny emol
r employment because of race, cclor, religicn, sex, Or nat
The Centractor ++ill tcke zffirmative actien to ensure that annlicaats
employed, and that cmuloyces are treated dur yment, witicut
to their rece, color, religion, scx, or neti . Such zcticen shall
include, but nct be limited to, the fcllewd ovment, gradi
meticn, or tramsfer; recruitment or recrui rtising; laycff
ination; rates cf »ay cr cother forms of cos saticr; end selection fo
training, including zvprenticeshis. The T acter agrees f{¢ TO5C 1n C€Cn-
spicucus places, available to empleoyces and »licaats for cmrloyment,
notices tc be wprovided by the Contracting Off
of this Equal Opportunity clause,

(a
fo

cer secting forth the nrevisions
PR

(b) The Contracter will, in all sclicitatisns cor advertisements for empleyces
placed by cr on behalf of the Centracicr, state thet 211 -w2lified arnnlicents
will receive consideraticn for employmznt without regard to race, culir, re=-
ligicn, sex, ¢r naticnal origin.

(c) The Centractor will send te each labor unicn ox represcentatave of

workers with which he hss a collective borgaining zgreement or cther ccon-
tract or vnderstanding, a nctice, te be vrcvided by the agency Contracting
-@fficer, advising the labuy unicn or werkers' rupresentative cf the Con-

tractor®s commitments under this Eiual Orxportunity clause, end shell nust
ccpies of the notice in conspicucus ylaces aveilable to employces gnd enpli-
cants for employment, . .

{d} The Contracter will comply with a1l yrcvisions cf Executive Oxder Ye.
11246 of. September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant

“orxders of the Secretary of Labex.

() The Coentracter will furnish 21l informaticn end remerts re uived by
Executive Order Mo. 11246 of Septumber 2%, 1965, znd by the rules, regulo-
tions, and orders cf the Secretary cf Labor, c¢r pursvant thereto, and will
permit access to his books, reccrds, and acccunts by the ccntracting agency
and the Secretary cf Labor for purreses of invesTigaticn te ascertain coa-
pliance with such rules, regulaticns, and crders.

(f) In the event of the Contractor's mcncempliacnce with the £ ouel Orucr-
tunity clause of this contract or with zny of the said rules, regulaticy
or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspenced, in
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or in zary, and the Controctey

m

be declared inceligible fo
ith ;rccedures aucheriae

and, such cther sanc

Ovéer o, 11246 of Sentembder 24, 1
pesed and remedices  invoked as nrey in Execcutive Crier ilc.
September 24, 1965, or ny rule, regulatiovn, or order of thae Secc
Laber, or as ctherwise rrevided by

lations, or orders of the Secretary of Laber is

se
204 of Enecutive Orcer .Mo. 11246 c¢f Seuvtember 24, 1 at suchh Tro-
visions vill be binding umon eech subcontracter or veader. The Contrecter
will take such zction with respect to any subcentract or jw ase orcer &s
the comtracting agency mey direct as a wmeans cf enforcing such srovisiconc,
including sancticns for noncemnlicrce:  Previded, however, Thet in the
event the Tontrzctor beccmes invclved 1n, or is threatened with, litig
with & suvbeontractor cr vender as a result of such directicn by the co

ing agency, the Contracter may request the United Stgtes €6 enter into

such litigeticn te protect the interests cof the United States.

5. DIEPRESEUTATIO!: The cffercr rejresents that he /75 wes, [/ nas wer,
particivated in a previcus contract ¢r subcontract subject to el
Equal Opportunity Clause herein; that he /7 7has, /7 hes not,

required ccmuliance revorts; and that representaticns i

obtained pricr teo’ biubecentract zwarcs. (The abeve remresentaticn need n
be submitted in cernnectiun with contracts ov subcontracts which zre exems
frem the clauses)

“6., DISPUTES: (a) Excent as ctheriise yrcvided in this contract, any dis-
pute concerning a questicn of fact arising under this centract which 1s ney
disposed of by egreement chall be decided by the Contractainj Cificer, whc
shall reduce his Jecisicn tc wrating crd mail or ctherwise furmish a ccp
thercof to the Centractor, The decisien of the Centracting Officer shall
‘be final and conclusive unless, within 30 days frem the dat
of such ccpy, the Contractor mails cr cothervise furnishes ¢
ing Officer a written 2;;2al addressed te che Secretary. T
the Secretary or has duly autherized revresentative fcr the de
of such apseals shell be finel and conclusive vnless determined by £ ceourt
of comvetent jurisdiccion te have been fraudulgnt, or cawmricicus, cr
arbitrary, «r so grossly errcnecus as necescarily to imnly vad faitn, or
not supipcrted by substantiel evidenca. In cennectien with eny arpcal
teedirg undar this clavse, the Centracter shall be afforded an ¢
to be hzard and tu offer evidence in support of its appeal. Penc
decision of a2 disvute herzunder, the Centracter shell grccced di

with the performance of the contract and in accordance with the C

©

€

= o - - b e s T AP SN U

by contract c¢r otherwise, ané wmay take gessescicn of and v

Officer‘c decisicn.

(b) This "Diswutes' clause coes no
gquesticns in conpecoien wieh do
cbovae:  Provided, That ncthing

iz centract
asminiscerakive

5
Cns arevaded
[*} o

or bcard on a suestion cf lowu.

7.

TION FCX DEFAULT -

(a) 1If the Centractor refuses or fails to presgecuie the work
sevarable paft therecf, with such diligence as will insvre
within the time specified in thas ccntract, or any extensicn there
fails fo comnzlete said werk within such time, the Coverrnzent may, oy
notice to the Contracter, terminace his right to urcceed with the
such part of the werk as tc which there has been a delay. In such
‘the'Covernment may take ever the werk and orcsecute the same Lo cos

ilize in
pleting the work such materials, an=liances, and nlant &s may bc cn
site of the wvork and necessery therefor. Waether cr nct :ae Concra
right tc uroceed with the work is tcrminaced, he and his svry
liable for any damage to the Goverrment resulting from
failure to complete the work within che specificd time.
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{b) 1I fixed and agreed lisuvrdoted dem

e
contract and if the Govar thz Cor "g
vight to precezed, the result.ng damage ©ill consict ol zuch ireul-
daved demages uncil suvch reasonebls tiume oo e w fox
i Lacieased costs

oc

n

asioncd the Govarrmant In comnlating

{c) If fived and agrez2d li. uvidated dam

rect end if tnc Government dces not so

ht to nroceed, the resuliing damege “inli ¢
a

damages until the =ork is comnleted and zc .
(d) The Contractox's wight co nroceed shall net bz so terminated
no: the Contractor chaiged with resulting damege if:

{1) The delay in the comdletion of the work arises fream un-
foresecable causes beyond thz control and siithout the fault
of negligence of tha Centyzccor, ineluding but not restricted
to, acts of God, acts of the nublic enemy, ccts of the
Govermment in either its sovereign or contractuzal cauacity,
acts of another contvactor .n the performance of a concract
vith the Government, fires, floods, ep.demics, zuarantine

4
restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, unusually sezvere
3 > o g 3
s

s

rather, or delays of subcontractors or sunplicys avising

frxom unforzseezble causes bayond the control end irithout

fault or negligence of boih the Contraccor and such sub-

contractors or susnliers; and

{2} The Contractor, within 10 days frem the beginning of
any such delay (unlzss the Contracting CIficer grants a
further -eriod of time b:fcve the date of final payment
under the contract), notifies the Contracting Officer in
writing of the causas of dealay.

the

The Contracting Officer shall ascevtain the facts and the extent
the delay and extend the time for completing the —ork “hen, =n his
judgment, the findIngs of fact juctify cuch an extension, ané his
finduings of fact shall be final and conclusaive on the nartiss, sub=-

Jert only to cppeal es puovided :n Clause 6 of these General Provigions.

ses e e A s e

(e) 1If, after notice of
procced undoew
any reason that tae Contra
sionc of ¢n:s clause, or theac
provxsrione of th.c clcuse,
parties ch 32 the contra
terminztion T converience :
che notice of tzmminction had been
I1f, in the fou

v oy
O

~rermsiances, L

clausz terminction fo
eruitably adjuc
termineiicn and the concvace modified
to any such adjucimenc shall be s disr cuestion of
fact witliin the meaning of the clause entitlad

"Disputes,

() The vights and remedics of the Government srovided in thie clause
are in addition to any other rightz and vewedles wrovided by lau eor
under this contvact,

(8) A5 uséd in Paragrash (d){1) of this clause, the term 'Sub-
contractors or Supplisvs' wmeans Jubconcractorc or Surpliers at
any tier,

&, ESCIGIIETUT OF CLATH (a) Puvrcuant to thz vrovisions of the
Assigomenc of Claims sc: of 140, as zmended (S U.S.C. 202, 41
U.S.C, 13), if this contiact provides for nayments aggregating
$1,000. or wmoze, claims for moneys duc or to become due thz Con-
trzctor from the €overnment under this contract nay be assigned

to a bank, trusi company, or othar financing inctitutivn, including
eny Tederal lending egency, and may thereafter be further assigned
&nd reassigned to any sucht fnstiturion, Apy such accignmenc or ree-
assignment chall cover all amounts vpayeble under this contract and
not already paid, and chall not be madz o morze then one parcy,
except that any such assignment or reassignment may be msde to ona
party as agent or &truscee for ©o or more parties participating in
cuch {inancing. Unless othewnise provided in this contract, nayments
to an assigiee of any moncys 4

shall not, to the extent rrovi

us or to become due undzy this contract
ded in said Act, a5 amended, be subject
to reduction or setofl. (The preceding sentence applies only if thes
contract is made in time of -ar or nacional emeréency 25 defined in
8aid ict end fs with the Denartment of Defense, the General Services
Aduinistration, the Atcmic Encray Commiss_on, the Hational Asronzutics
and Space Adminmistration, the Feceral Aviation sgency, o zay cther
department or agency of the United Staces dasionaced by the Pres:cent
purcuant to Clause of the nroviso of section 1 of the Acsigmaent of
?la;ms Act of 1040, as amendad by the Act of May 15, 1931, 62 Stat.
w1,
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(b) In no cvent chall cowies of this
ficationc, or other 513
contrace, if mavie
be Zurniched to auy

ttaci or o oth= nc. encicled to rece:
Houovay, a vy of eny novs or 21l of

be Zurnished, or 2z

to cuch cssignce voen the
Contraciing Ofiicer.

coniract or
documents relating co

any

o
©
r

“Confidencial,"
.

of -m Svising under this coa-

< the some,

thic contract co macked may
cren conrained therzin may be dicciozed,
aucnorization of :he

9. COMVICT LAEOD: Tn connect-on i,
«S contract, the Centractor
undegonng sentence of imar

Tmancs of “orlk
em,.loy any werscen

CIVIL DIGHTS ACT CF The Erusl Opuertunity clause
»& contiract a- isc Cections
70"b) (1) and 7VJ\ ) of

of 1954,
wuhach percaing :o Indian tribes
:eat?LnL in employment given to

0 o

tae

70 Stat. 24.,—L\7 s
a2s emzloyers and o o
Indians r2siding on or n

i1, TERMIWATICH 'CI_OF THI GOVERIMEDT: The Contracting
cei by writtezn notzca, may fevainois this contract, in ole or
in part, vhen it is in the Lnterest of the Gove&nmvn . LI this con-
tract is terminated, the concvaccor chall be comi: ated in accorg=-
ance with Part 1-8 of the sement “~~ tions (41 CFL 1-3)

X -2zu
3

in cffect on this contract 'y gara.

ne
ia

12. FEDERAL, STATE, .AiD LCCAL TA () ‘Except as may be other=
wise wovited in this contiacy, the contraci nrzice includes all
zplicable Federal Stace, and iocal tzaxes and dugizs,

(b) Hevertheless, =ith res=oet to 2ny Federal eucise ca: or duty
on the transactions or oY ty covered by this contvact, if a
stat\te, court decisicn, tten ruling, or regulation tzkes
or h contracc date, and--
Jz2sults in the Contractior being
the burdern of any such Federal exci
Tate thereof which -jould noc other
trancactions or proveriy, the contract =rice shzall be
the amount of such tar or duty or rate
Con

cc
rt

o

Lect

l-\
2
L

d to »ay ox bear

se tax: or duty or increase in the
have been paysble on such
wnc:eaced by
increasel Frovided, That the
© 15 resuested by the Contrvacting Gfficew, -- €T 1n
writing that no amount for such neuly imposed rﬂﬂn-a’ excise tax ©
duty or rate increcase was included in the contract »Tice ac a con-
tingency reserve or othemiice; o

188
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(2) Tesultc in the Contvacior not beins
bear the burden of, or in his obraining a ref
any such Federal ise tax or cuty uh
been payable on such trancactionc ow
of &n increasc ia the cond:
decrcased by the amount of or dravbac!z, or that
amoun. shall be »aid to che Covernment, &s divected by the Contrac-
ting Cificer. The cencract urice shall bz similarly decreascd if
the Contractexr, through his fault or regligence ox nis failuve to
£ollowr instructions of the Coutsaccing Cfficer, Teouired to pay
or bear the burden of, or does not obtain z rofund or draubach of,
any cuch Federal excise tax or cuty.

2. CORTDACT VIGRK ECUSS MDD U7

DS ACT-CVERTINE C

This centract, to ths excenc d
Contract Work Hours znd Ca: tan da ¢s Acc (&0 U.V.C. 227-223) is
subjcct to the follow: ns and co all othzr a iceble provi-
sions and exceptions of cuch Act znd the vegulaticns of the Secretary
of Labor thereunder,

& charac:

“Thiz contract i¢ subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safeuy
Standards Act and to the appliczbdle wules, vegulations and interprecas
tionc of the Secretary of Labou.®

(a) Overtime reosuirements, Mo Contractor or subcontractor contrace
ting for any part of the contraci work vhich may reruire or involve
the eoployment of laborerc or mezchanics shall re uire or permit any
labores cr mechanic in any vorkreelr in vhich he ic 2mloyed en such
wouvk to 2otk in cxcess of hours in any calendar day or in excess
of forty hours in such uovis on vork subjcet to thz proviciong of
the Contract York Hours znd Sa 2ty Stancavds Act unlecs cuch labg:er
or mechanic veceives comtencation at @ sate noib lacs théan on2 and one-
half times his basic rate of nay for all such nouvs worked :n 2ncess
of =ight hours in any calencar day or in excess of forty hogrs in
such worlmeek, whichever is th2 greater number ol cvercime hou:s.

caid wrages; li-uidated damagecs. Iu

(b) Violation; 1iabil
the event of any viola

1 visions of yeragravh (a), the
Concracior and any sub tor resdonsible therefor saall bz liablz
to zny affcctad emnloye his umicid vages, In addition, such
Contractor and cubeonir chcll bz liable ‘tc &ne Uniied States
for liquidatcd camages. n li~uidated damage:z shall b2 compuied

1
with resyzct to each indiv:cdual 1 cbover or mechanic zmnloyed in
violation of the wrovicionc of wmavagradh (a) in the cum of $10 for
each calzndar day om ich cuch em:loyes w:as rernived oY permicgcd .
to bz emiloyed on such wori xn 2ucesc of eaght hours or in excess of
his standard wrorkiesi: of forcy noucs without noyment of “the overtime
weges re.uvired by varagrah (a)




205

Fexm 5-1252 SPECTIAL PROVISIONS

icated dameges. Thz
Covernmnnt wmz Con-
L?ac:oa, £von :ny monzyc :ayesble eon accounc of work serformed by
the Conireccor or subcencuactior, such
be det:rmined to b2 nececsary

(5

'TICES PRCG

SUms 2c may administracively
vy o serisliy cny l.cobilut.es of such
subconcracios fn' ¢ -rzges and lacuidated demages
as rrovided in the Srovssions ragva:h (b).

1. Definiticns. {a) The term "Contracting OfLficer" as used in this cc

1211 insevt paragra hs (2) refers to the Official of the Burceu of Indian Lffairs, who crecutes thic
(6) of in ail cubconcraces, and shall re-uive
nclucion contracis ol any TLew,

contract en behalf of the United States of Zmerica or ony person authorized

(2) QDtcowds. Thz Contractor chall meinrain vpay.oll rwecords con-
taLn1ng the information 3] Cc” r10 2(a). Such recovds
shall be preterved for three yeasc from the comzletion of the

to act for him in his official cepacity or his successor.

(b) The term "Designated representative of the Contracting Officexr"

when used by the Contracting Officer during the perfermance of this

11 be conductad under the
zihz Contracting Officer and is subject to
snated 14cwectrv' o Insuve sirict complie-
the cor 3 sBector ie nULhO—:’eQ

to change any rrovi ns of the thouw «
ization of the Concveccing OFIi the puesence or
zbcence of an insuector relleve - from any weuiie-
ments of the contract,

contract means those persons designated by the Contracting Officer

to perform certaln specified functions required by the terms of the

contract and the general provisions.

.

“{c} The term "eligible Indien chiidren' whenever used herein is

15, SUIEIVISICGT BY THE CORTRACT The Coniracto. shall arrange
for satzsfactory cupervisuon of Lae szl or carvices to be ver-
formed under thic contract. Thz Contvactor oy his desi;nated
vepresontative chall be aveilable at v2asonzbls times <hon the
work o services ave being Terformed for the consultation with
the Contracting Officer or his resvesentatiive.

,qefineﬁ as Follows:

(1) Children in foster care, who were eligible under the

“term$ of the previous year's controct.

156. POETERNEICE TG IOCA

&1l work to bz nerformed unczz

{Z) Indlon children accepted for foster care on or after
S0TS:  Prefervencs in camloyment for . -

1o comtvact, :ncluding subcontraces
reunder, shall be given to loczl residencs subject to the provis
sions of Clause /4, ENUAL OPECRTURITY.

the current fiscal ycar, vhose fzmilies on date of
" aceeptence res{de on tex exeupt property held in trust -
for Intfans by the Federal Government snd whose femilies
reside on other tax exempt lands fog:lndian usé& under

the jurisaibfiou of the Federal Government.

(3f ”CQildrep from the Red Lake Reservation, when there is
F "

rutual agrecment between the Commissioner of Public Welfare

and the Area Director, the designated representetive of the

‘Contracting Officer, that foster care plocement can be

arronged cutside the boundaries of the rcservetieon without
o

the ncecssity of invoking the juriscicticn of the Juvenile

Court @f Bcltrami County.
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